
 

To participate in public comment from your computer, tablet, or smartphone:  
When the Board President announces the agenda item you wish to speak on, click the “raise hand”  

feature in Zoom*. You will be notified when it is your turn to speak.  

To participate in public comment via phone: 
When the Board President announces the agenda item you wish to speak on, dial *9 to raise your hand. 
Phone participants will be called on by the LAST TWO digits of their phone number. When it is your turn  

to speak, dial *6 to unmute. When you are finished with your public comment dial *6 to mute.  

Can’t attend? If you wish to still have your comments/concerns addressed by the Board of Directors, all  
written public comments can be submitted by 4:30 PM the day of the meeting by either e-mail or mail.**  

Please send all written comments to the Board Secretary. Refer to the Board Agenda for more information.  

SCV WATER AGENCY  
TELECONFERENCE  

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

*For more information on how to use Zoom go to support.zoom.us or for “raise hand” feature instructions, visit
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/205566129-Raise-Hand-In-Webinar

**All written comments received after 4:30 PM the day of the meeting will be posted to yourscvwater.com the next day. Public 
comments can also be heard the night of the meeting. 

Disclaimer: Pursuant to the Executive Order N-29-20 issued by Governor Newsom, public may not attend meetings in person. 
Public may use the above methods to attend and participate in the public board meetings. 

TUESDAY, MARCH 16, 2021 

START TIME: 6:30 PM (PST)

Join the Board meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone: 
https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1609127883 

-Or-
Listen in Toll Free by Phone at 1-(833)-568-8864 

Webinar ID: 160 912 7883 

1



[This page intentionally left blank.] 

2



27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD •  SANTA CLARITA,  CALIFORNIA 91350-2173 •  661 297•1600 •  FAX 661 297•1611 

webs i t e  address :  www.yourscvwate r . com

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 
RIO VISTA WATER TREATMENT PLANT  

27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD 
SANTA CLARITA, CA  91350 

TELECONFERENCE ONLY 
NO PHYSICAL LOCATION FOR MEETING 

TUESDAY, MARCH 16, 2021 AT 6:30 PM 

TELECONFERENCING NOTICE 

Pursuant to the provisions of Executive Order N-29-20 issued by  
Governor Gavin Newsom on March 17, 2020, any Director  
may call into an Agency Board meeting using the Agency’s 

Call-In Number 1-(833)-568-8864, Webinar ID 160 912 7883 

or Zoom Webinar by clicking on the link https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1609127883 

without otherwise complying with the Brown Act’s teleconferencing requirements. 

Pursuant to the above Executive Order, the public may not attend the meeting in person. Any 
member of the public may listen to the meeting or make comments to the Board using the call-in 

number or Zoom Webinar link above. Please see the notice below if you have a disability and 
require an accommodation in order to participate in the meeting.  

We request that the public submit any comments in writing if practicable, which can be sent to 
ajacobs@scvwa.org or mailed to April Jacobs, Board Secretary, Santa Clarita Valley Water 

Agency, 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. All written comments received 
before 4:30 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to the Board members and posted on 

the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything 
received after 4:30 PM the day of the meeting will be posted on the  

SCV Water website the following day.    

OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 PM 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Members of the public may comment as to items not on the
Agenda at this time. Members of the public wishing to comment on items covered in
this Agenda may do so now or at the time each item is considered. (Comments may, at
the discretion of the Board’s presiding officer, be limited to three minutes for each
speaker.) Members of the public wishing to comment on items covered in Closed
Session before they are considered by the Board must request to make comment at
the commencement of the meeting at 6:30 PM.

3



 

March 16, 2021 
Page 2 of 4 
 

 

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR        PAGE 

 

5.1   * Approve Minutes of the March 2, 2021 Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency Regular Board of Directors Meeting 7 

5.2   * Approve (1) a Resolution for Construction Contract with GSE 
Construction Company, Inc., (2) a Purchase Order to 
Kennedy Jenks for Engineering Services During Construction 
and (3) a Purchase Order to MNS Engineers for Construction 
Management and Inspection Services for the Valley Center 
Well PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements Project 13 

5.3   * Approve a Change Order to the Contract for Newhall Tank 2 
Interior Recoat and Repair 29 

5.4   * Approve a Resolution Concurring in Nomination of Jo 
MacKenzie to the CSDA Board of Directors Seat A 31 

 

6. ACTION ITEM FOR APPROVAL             PAGE 

 

6.1   * Approve (1) a Resolution Awarding a Construction Contract to 
Pacific Tank and Construction Inc., with a Condition that 
Project Complies with the Adopted Supplemental Mitigated 
Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 
Program, and to Approve the General Manager’s Change 
Order Authority be Increased to Ten Percent (10%) of the 
Original Contract Amount, (2) a Work Authorization to Cannon 
Corporation for Construction Management and Inspection 
Services, (3) a Work Authorization to Kennedy Jenks for 
Engineering Construction Support Services and (4) a Work 
Authorization to Geolabs Westlake Village for Geotechnical 
Observation and Testing Services for the Vista Canyon (Phase 
2B) Recycled Water Tank Project 35 

 

7. PRESENTATION    

 

7.1    Status of Water Supplies  

 

8. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT ON ACTIVITIES, PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS 

 

9. COMMITTEE MEETING RECAP REPORTS FOR INFORMATIONAL                      

PURPOSES ONLY     PAGE 

 

9.1   * March 4, 2021 Engineering and Operations Committee 
Meeting Report  57 

 

10. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

 

 

 

 

4



 

March 16, 2021 
Page 3 of 4 
 

 

11. AB 1234 WRITTEN AND VERBAL REPORTS            PAGE 

    

11.1 * March 3, 2021 DCA Program Review Workshop – President 
Martin 63 

11.2 * March 5, 2021 NWRA Federal Affairs Committee – Vice 
President Gladbach 65 

11.3 March 9, 2021 DCA Cost Estimate Workshop – President 
Martin  

11.4 March 11, 2021 Urban Water Institute Board Meeting – 
President Martin  

11.5 March 11, 2021 ACWA 2021 Virtual Legislative Symposium – 
Vice President Gladbach and Director Cooper  

11.6 March 16, 2021 VIA Virtual Series – Director Kelly  

11.7  Other AB 1234 Reports  

          
12. DIRECTOR REPORTS 

 
13. CLOSED SESSION – SEPARATE DIAL-IN PHONE NUMBER WILL BE PROVIDED TO 

THE BOARD AND APPROPRIATE STAFF  
 

13.1 Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation – Significant 
Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Paragraph (2) of Subdivision (d) of Section 
54956.9, Claim of Boucher LLP on Behalf of Multiple Claimants and Any and 
All Claims that Arise from Incident Regarding FivePoint Magic Mountain Tank 
Sand Blasting, Located at 26975U Westridge Parkway, Against Santa Clarita 
Valley Water Agency, Claim for Personal Injury and Property Damage, Date 
of Claim March 1, 2021 

 
13.2 Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation – Significant 

Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Paragraph (2) of Subdivision (d) of Section 
54956.9 (One Case)   

 
OPEN SESSION CONTINUES WITH THE PHONE NUMBER LISTED 

ON THE FIRST PAGE OF THIS AGENDA 
 

14. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

15. DIRECTOR REQUESTS FOR APPROVAL FOR EVENT ATTENDANCE 
 

16. REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

17. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

*    Indicates Attachment 
   Indicates Handout 

 
 
Note:  The Board reserves the right to discuss or take action or both on all of the above 
Agenda items. 

 

5



 

March 16, 2021 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 

NOTICES 

 

Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed for 
that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning April Jacobs, Secretary to 
the Board of Directors, at (661) 297-1600, or in writing to Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency at 27234 
Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. Requests must specify the nature of the disability 
and the type of accommodation requested. A telephone number or other contact information should 
be included so that Agency staff may discuss appropriate arrangements. Persons requesting a 
disability-related accommodation should make the request with adequate time before the meeting for 
the Agency to provide the requested accommodation. 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open 
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours 
prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, 
located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350, during regular business hours. 
When practical, these public records will also be made available on the Agency’s Internet Website, 
accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com.  
 
Posted on March 10, 2021.  

6



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency – March 2, 2021 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency was held 
via teleconference at 6:30 PM on Tuesday, March 2, 2021. A copy of the Agenda is inserted in 
the Minute Book of the Agency preceding these minutes. 

DIRECTORS PRESENT: Kathye Armitage, B. J. Atkins, Beth Braunstein, Ed Colley, William 
Cooper, Jeff Ford, Jerry Gladbach, R. J. Kelly, Gary Martin, Dan 
Mortensen, Piotr Orzechowski and Lynne Plambeck via 
teleconference. 

DIRECTORS ABSENT:  None. 

Also present via teleconference: General Manager Matthew Stone, General Counsel Tom Bunn 
and Joe Byrne, Board Secretary April Jacobs, Assistant General Manager Steve Cole, Chief 
Engineer Courtney Mael, Chief Financial and Administrative Officer Eric Campbell, Chief 
Operating Officer Keith Abercrombie, Director of Finance and Administration Rochelle 
Patterson, Director of Tech Services Cris Perez, Communications Manager Kathie Martin, GIS 
Manager Jose Huerta, Sustainability Manager Matt Dickens, Principal Engineers Brent Payne 
and Jason Yim, Senior Engineer Shadi Bader and Jim Leserman, Senior Management Analyst 
Kim Grass, Financial Analyst Darine Conner, Water Resources Planner Rick Vasilopulos, Water 
Conservation Specialist II Janet Keith, Executive Assistant’s Eunie Kang and Leticia Quintero, 
Senior Office Assistant Terri Bell, Accounting Tech II Kyle Arnold, and members of the public.  

President Martin called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM. A quorum was present.  

Upon motion of Vice President Mortensen, seconded by Director Atkins and carried, the Board 
approved the Agenda by the following roll call votes (Item 4): 

Director Armitage  Yes Director Atkins Yes 
Director Braunstein   Yes Director Colley Yes 
Director Cooper  Yes Director Ford  Yes 
Vice President Gladbach Yes Director Kelly   Yes 
President Martin  Yes Vice President Mortensen Yes 
Director Orzechowski   Yes Director Plambeck Yes 

Upon motion of Vice President Mortensen, seconded by Director Cooper and carried, the 
Board pulled item 5.2 for further discussion and approved the remaining items on the Consent 
Calendar including Resolution Nos. SCV-199, SCV-200 and SCV-201 by the following roll call 
votes (Item 5): 

Director Armitage  Yes Director Atkins Yes 
Director Braunstein   Yes Director Colley Yes 
Director Cooper  Yes Director Ford  Yes 
Vice President Gladbach Yes Director Kelly   Yes 
President Martin  Yes Vice President Mortensen Yes 
Director Orzechowski   Yes Director Plambeck Yes 

7

ajacobs
Draft

ajacobs
Item 5.1



Minutes of March 2, 2021 
Page 2 of 6 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. SCV-199 
 

JOINT RESOLUTION OF 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, 

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE GREATER LOS ANGELES COUNTY VECTOR 
CONTROL DISTRICT AND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 
APPROVING AND ACCEPTING THE NEGOTIATED EXCHANGE OF PROPERTY TAX 

REVENUES RESULTING FROM ANNEXATION OF L 015-2020 
TO COUNTY LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT 1687 

 
https://yourscvwater.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/SCV-Water-Approved-Resolution-

030221-Resolution-SCV-199.pdf 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 200 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 

CONCURRING IN NOMINATION TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES 

JOINT POWERS INSURANCE AUTHORITY (ACWA/JPIA) 
 

https://yourscvwater.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/SCV-Water-Approved-Resoluton-
030221-Resolution-SCV-200.pdf 

 
RESOLUTION NO. SCV-201 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 
CONCURRING IN NOMINATION TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES 
JOINT POWERS INSURANCE AUTHORITY (ACWA/JPIA) 

 
https://yourscvwater.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/SCV-Water-Approved-

Resolution-030221-Resolution-SCV-201.pdf 
 

-------------- 
 
To help with the discussion and provide more information for Item 5.2, the presentation on 
Item 6.2 was given first but a vote on Item 6.2 was not taken, the Board voted on this item 
after Item 6.1. 
 
Upon motion of Director Cooper, seconded by Director Orzechowski and carried, the Board 
approved Resolution No. SCV-198 adopting the Final Supplemental Initial Study-Mitigated 
Negative Declaration and the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program under the 
California Environmental Quality Act for the Vista Canyon Recycled Water (Phase 2B) project 
by the following roll call votes (Item 5.2): 
 
Director Armitage   Yes   Director Atkins   Yes 
Director Braunstein   Yes   Director Colley   Yes  
Director Cooper   Yes    Director Ford   Yes 

8



Minutes of March 2, 2021 
Page 3 of 6 
 

 

 

Vice President Gladbach  Yes    Director Kelly        Yes  
President Martin   Yes    Vice President Mortensen Yes 
Director Orzechowski   Yes   Director Plambeck  Yes 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. SCV-198 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS ADOPTING THE SUPPLEMENTAL MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

AND MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
UNDER THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 

FOR THE RECYCLED WATER VISTA CANYON EXTENSION (PHASE 2B) PROJECT 
 

https://yourscvwater.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/SCV-Water-Approved-
Resolution-030221-Resolution-SCV-198.pdf 

 
-------------- 

 
Upon motion of Vice President Gladbach, seconded by Director Ford and carried, the Board 
authorized the General Manager to implement the Purple PREP Pilot for recycled water on-
site conversion support by the following roll call votes (Item 6.1): 
 
Director Armitage   Yes   Director Atkins   Yes 
Director Braunstein   Yes   Director Colley   Yes  
Director Cooper   Yes    Director Ford   Yes 
Vice President Gladbach  Yes    Director Kelly    Yes   
President Martin   Yes    Vice President Mortensen Yes 
Director Orzechowski   Yes   Director Plambeck  Yes 
 
Upon motion of Director Orzechowski, seconded by Director Colley and carried, the Board 
authorized the General Manager to execute an agreement to purchase property for the Phase 
2B Recycled Water tank location for up to $65,000 and execute an agreement to transfer 
property to the City of Santa Clarita upon completion of the purchase of the new tank site by 
the following roll call votes (Item 6.2): 
 
Director Armitage   Yes   Director Atkins   Yes 
Director Braunstein   Yes   Director Colley   Yes  
Director Cooper   Yes    Director Ford   Yes 
Vice President Gladbach  Yes    Director Kelly    Yes   
President Martin   Yes    Vice President Mortensen Yes 
Director Orzechowski   Yes   Director Plambeck  Yes 
 

-------------- 
 
General Manager’s Report on Activities, Projects and Programs (Item 7). 
 
The General Manager gave an update on the following items: 
 

• Solar Purchase Power Agreements.  

9



Minutes of March 2, 2021 
Page 4 of 6 

 

 

 

• UWI Spring Conference where he was a moderator on a panel discussing the WaterFix 
Project and gave details on that presentation. 

• He thanked staff for their hard work on completing tonight’s Item 6.2, Phase 2B recycled 
water tank location. 

• Lastly, he touched back on the earlier public comment on the public’s ability to add items 
to the agenda.   
 

-------------- 
 
Committee Meeting Recap Reports for Informational Purposes Only (Item 8). 
 
There were no comments on the recap reports. 
 

-------------- 
 
Written Reports for Informational Purposes Only (Item 9). 
 
Director Armitage thanked the Water Resources Department for their Section Report that 
covered the SCV Water Green Team. She loves that we have a Green Team, with it being an 
integrated team, that focuses on sustainability.  She was also happy to read about the 
recharge feasibility studies taking place to access how we can recharge groundwater on the 
east side.  She has heard on numerous occasions from community members, who are 
concerned about that issue. 
 
There were no other comments on the written reports. 
 

-------------- 
 
President’s Report (Item 10). 
 
President Martin updated the Board on Director Armitage’s request that Committee meetings 
be recorded. He advised the Board that after discussion with the Board officers and staff at 
Agenda Planning, it was decided that Committee meetings would not be recorded due to 
future costs of those recordings once we go back to in-person meetings. It was felt that once 
we started recording these meetings we would need to continue and those costs would be 
very high.   
 
He then updated the Board on upcoming conferences and Agency related meetings/webinars.  

Lastly, he touched on Mr. Petzold’s comments that were giving at the beginning of the meeting 

pertaining to the policy on the public requesting agenda items which was removed from the 

SCV Water website. He again mentioned that the policy that was on the website was not a 

Board approved policy and that is why it was taken down. Mr. Petzold’s original request for an 

agenda item to be added to the Board agenda was considered as if the policy were in effect 

because of the confusion and as a courtesy. This was a one-time consideration, due to the 

fact, it is again not a Board Policy. Further he mentioned that the Board could consider such a 

policy in the future in its discretion. He reiterated that the Board Agenda is set by the Board 

and is under their purview. However, the public can contact any Director should they want to 

ask for something to be put on a future agenda. He does not see the Board moving forward 

with this item at this time.   

10



Minutes of March 2, 2021 
Page 5 of 6 

 

 

 

-------------- 
 
 
AB 1234 Written and Verbal Reports (Item 11). 
 
Written reports were submitted by Vice President Gladbach and Directors Braunstein and 
Orzechowski and were included in the Board packet.  Additional written reports were submitted 
by President Martin and Directors Armitage and Plambeck which were posted on the SCV 
Water website, OnBoard and are part of the record.  
 
Vice President Gladbach reported that he attended the ACWA DC 2021 Virtual Conference on 
February 24, 2021.  He also took a moment to thank the Agency for sponsoring the event.   
 
Director Armitage reported that she attended the AWWA Virtual Summit on Sustainable Water/ 
PFAS /Waterborne Pathogens held on February 10-11, 2021 and attended the Urban Water 
Institute Spring 2021 Virtual Conference held on February 17-18, 2021. 
 
Director Atkins reported that he attended the the Urban Water Institute Spring 2021 Virtual 
Conference held on February 17-18, 2021, the SCWC Water Quality Matters Webinar on 
February 19, 2021 and the ACWA DC 2021 Virtual Conference on February 24, 2021.  
 
Director Colley reported that he met with the General Manager via teleconference for a one-
on-one Director meeting on February 25, 2021. 
 
Director Kelly reported that he attended the ACWA DC 2021 Virtual Conference on February 
24, 2021 and the ACWA Business Development Program in February 2021.  
 
There were no further AB 1234 Reports and all meetings were virtual. 
 

-------------- 
 
Director Reports (Item 12).  
 
Director Orzechowski thanked General Manager Stone and Customer Service Manager 
Kathleen Willson for their quick response to a recent customer issue that he had brought to their 
attention. 
 

-------------- 
 

Director Requests for Approval for Event Attendance (Item 13). 

 

There were no Director requests for event attendance.  
 

-------------- 
 
Request for Future Agenda Items (Item 14). 
 
Director Armitage requested that the Consumer Confidence Report/Water Quality Report, when 
released, be presented to the Board as a presentation with the objectives of helping Board 
members understand three things (1) how to find it online, (2) how customers can get a hard 

11



Minutes of March 2, 2021 
Page 6 of 6 

 

 

 

copy and (3) how to read and understand the Consumer Confidence Report and what the 
numbers mean.    
 
Director Atkins requested that we have a more in-dept discussion of the Westridge HOA issue 
that was raised during public comment and he expressed his concern with some of the public 
comments.   
 

• General Counsel Joe Byrne mentioned this item would be discussed in Closed Session 
at the next Board meeting.   

 
There were no other requests for future Agenda items.   
 

-------------- 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:09 PM (Item 15). 
 
 
 
             
         April Jacobs, Board Secretary 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
President of the Board 
 

12



BOARD MEMORANDUM 

SUMMARY 

SCV Water is planning to construct treatment improvements to treat per- and polyfluoroalkyl 
substances (PFAS) at its Valley Center Well. At the October 20, 2020 Board meeting, the 
material purchase funding was authorized, and the material acquisition is in progress. The site 
construction work for the Valley Center Well PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements 
project was advertised, and bids have been received. Staff is recommending award of a 
construction contract to GSE Construction Co., Inc. (GSE). Staff is also recommending approval 
of a Purchase Order (PO) to Kennedy Jenks (KJ) for engineering services during construction 
and a PO to MNS Engineers (MNS) for construction management and inspection services. 

DISCUSSION 

Valley Center Well is located at 26715 Valley Center Drive. The well was constructed between 
2009 and 2010. The well produces 1,200 gallons per minute (gpm) of potable water. 

The proposed PFAS treatment uses Ion Exchange technology that will capture and remove 
PFAS to non-detect limits before entering the distribution system. The site construction work 
was advertised from November 23, 2020 to February 2, 2021. Staff is recommending award of a 
construction contract to GSE, and POs to KJ and MNS for engineering services during 
construction and construction management and inspection services, respectively. The 
construction bid was advertised in accordance with the SCV Water Purchasing Policy, with 
notices in The Signal on three different dates and on the Agency’s website. On February 2, 
2021, the following eight (8) bids were received: 

Bidder Bidder Office Location Total Bid Price 

GSE Construction Co., Inc. Livermore, CA $2,996,800 
Bowe Contractors Inc Lancaster, CA $3,098,000 
HPS Mechanical, Inc. Bakersfield, CA $3,372,135 
PCL Construction, Inc. Long Beach, CA $3,372,150 

Pacific Hydrotech Corporation Perris, CA $3,380,523 
Integrated Water Services, Inc. Steamboat Springs, CO $3,390,432 

Teichert Energy & Utilities Group, Inc. Long Beach, CA $3,648,000 

DATE: March 5, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Courtney Mael, P.E. 
Chief Engineer 

SUBJECT: Approve (1) a Resolution for Construction Contract with GSE Construction 
Company, Inc., (2) a Purchase Order to Kennedy Jenks for Engineering 

Services During Construction and (3) a Purchase Order to MNS Engineers for 

Construction Management and Inspection Services for the Valley Center Well 
PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements Project 

13

ajacobs
Item 5.2

ajacobs
Courteny Mael



 

 

Mehta Mechanical Company Inc. La Palma, CA $6,582,800 
 
The apparent lowest responsive bid is from GSE for a total of $2,996,800. The engineer’s 
estimate for the project is approximately $3,000,000. GSE is registered with the Department of 
Industrial Relations and has constructed projects for the Agency in the past. 
 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) DETERMINATION 
 
The proposed action today is authorizing the award of a construction contract to GSE 
Construction Co., Inc., and approval of a Purchase Order to Kennedy Jenks for engineering 

services during construction and a Purchase Order to MNS Engineers for construction 

management and inspection services for PFAS treatment at the Valley Center Well project. The 

whole of the action also includes operation of the project. The term “Project" in CEQA refers to 
the whole of an action and to the underlying activity being approved, not to each governmental 

approval. (CEQA Guideline §15378(a), (c)–(d).) This definition ensures that the action reviewed 

under CEQA is not the approval itself but the development or other activities that will result from 
the approval.  

The project construction is a minor alteration limited to construction within the Agency’s existing 
facility property. Construction and operation of this project is found to be categorically exempt 
under the provisions of CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines as described below: 

• The project, aka the whole of the action, qualifies for an exemption under CEQA 
guidelines section 15301 Class 1 Minor Alterations to Existing Facilities because it is a 
minor alteration of an existing public facility and it concerns proposed new mechanical 
equipment involving negligible or no expansion of use, i.e. no additional extraction of 
water, beyond that existing at the time of the lead agency’s determination. 

• The project, aka the whole of the action, also qualifies for an exemption under CEQA 
guidelines section 15303 Class 3 New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures 
because the project construction is limited to construction within SCV Water’s existing 
facility property.  

• None of the exceptions listed in Section 15300.2 of the CEQA Guidelines would apply to 
the action. In particular, a biological resources survey was conducted, and no special 
status species were observed. Based on discharge rate and duration, the well discharge 
will not create flowing water in the river sufficient to reach the closest unarmored three 
spine stickleback occupied habitat downstream. This finding is supported by the 
biological resources assessment prepared for the project. 

On March 4, 2021, the Engineering and Operations Committee considered staff’s 
recommendation to approve (1) a resolution for construction contract with GSE Construction 
Company, Inc., (2) a purchase order to Kennedy Jenks for engineering services during 
construction and (3) a purchase order to MNS Engineers for construction management and 
inspection services for the Valley Center Well PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements 
Project. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

The project is included in SCV Water’s FY 2020/21 Capital Improvement Program Budget for 

the Valley Center Well PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements project. Currently, 

14



 

 

$376,000 has been expended on this project. The project’s total estimated cost, including 

planning, design, construction management, construction, inspection and miscellaneous costs, 
is $5,387,000. GSE Construction Co., Inc.’s bid is $2,996,800. 

The retail debt cap is $11,047,000 and the estimated PFAS expenses for all of the PFAS 
projects are approximately $9.2 million, which will be paid from 2020A bond funds. Any PFAS 
costs that exceed $11,047,000 will be billed to each of the retail divisions’ pay-go accounts.  
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
The Engineering and Operations Committee recommends that the Board of Directors (1) 
approve the attached resolution for a construction contract with GSE Construction Co., Inc. in 
an amount not to exceed $2,996,800, (2) authorize the General Manager to execute a purchase 
order with Kennedy Jenks for an amount not to exceed $300,000 for engineering services 
during construction and (3) authorize the General Manager to execute a purchase order with 
MNS Engineers for an amount not to exceed $450,000 for construction management and 
inspection services for the Valley Center Well PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements 
Project. 
 
Attachments 
 
 
 

15

ajacobs
Matt Stone



[This page intentionally left blank.] 

16



 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 

AWARDING A CONTRACT TO GSE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. FOR THE 
VALLEY CENTER WELL PFAS GROUNDWATER TREATMENT  

IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
 
 
WHEREAS, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (Agency) determined that Per- and 
polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) are a threat to the Agency’s groundwater resources; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Valley Center Well PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements 
Project is an important component to treat PFAS; and 
 
WHEREAS, SCV Water, as a CEQA Responsible Agency, filed a Notice of Exemption with 
the Los Angeles County Clerk’s Office and the State Clearinghouse on August 10, 2020 
and there are no substantial changes to the project; and  
 
WHEREAS, the project, aka the whole of the action, qualifies for an exemption under 
CEQA guidelines section 15301 Class 1 Minor Alterations to Existing Facilities because it is 
a minor alteration of an existing public facility and it concerns proposed new mechanical 
equipment involving negligible or no expansion of use, i.e. no additional extraction of water, 
beyond that existing at the time of the lead agency’s determination; and 
 
WHEREAS, the project, aka the whole of the action, also qualifies for an exemption under 
CEQA guidelines section 15303 Class 3 New Construction or Conversion of Small 
Structures because the project construction is limited to construction within SCV Water’s 
existing facility property; and 
 
WHEREAS, none of the exceptions listed in Section 15300.2 of the CEQA Guidelines 
would apply to the action. In particular, a biological resources survey was conducted, and 
no special status species were observed. Based on discharge rate and duration, the well 
discharge will not create flowing water in the river sufficient to reach the closest unarmored 
three spine stickleback occupied habitat downstream. This finding is supported by the 
biological resources assessment prepared for the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, no further CEQA documentation is necessary for the Board to act with regards 
to the proposed actions; and 
 
WHEREAS, all bid proposals submitted to the Agency pursuant to the Agency’s 
specifications (Project No. 200602F) for the construction of the Valley Center Well PFAS 
Groundwater Treatment Improvements Project, as amended by Addenda, were publicly 
opened electronically on the Agency’s bid website page on PlanetBids on Tuesday, 
February 2, 2021 at 2:00 p.m., in full accordance with the law and the Agency’s customary 
procedures; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors finds, after considering the opinion of staff, that the 
total bid of GSE Construction Co., Inc. in the amount of $2,996,800 is the lowest 

17



 

responsible bid of eight (8) bids submitted, and that said bid substantially meets the 
requirements of said construction contract documents as amended by Addenda; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the Agency’s best interest that the Board of Directors, on behalf of 
the Agency, authorize its General Manager to accept the $2,996,800 bid from GSE 
Construction Co., Inc.; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the Agency’s best interest that the Board of Directors, on behalf of 
the Agency, authorize its General Manager to authorize a Purchase Order in the amount 
of $300,000 to Kennedy Jenks for Engineering Services During Construction; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the Agency’s best interest that the Board of Directors, on behalf of 
the Agency, authorize its General Manager to authorize a Purchase Order in the amount 
of $450,000 to MNS Engineers for Construction Management and Inspection Services; 
and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Agency’s Board of Directors does 
authorize its General Manager to accept said low bid and does therefore authorize the 
Agency’s General Manager or its Chief Engineer to issue a Notice of Award to GSE 
Construction Co., Inc., hereby found to be the “lowest responsible bidder” for the Valley 
Center Well PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements Project for the total sum of 
$2,996,800. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the Agency’s Board of Directors does authorize its General 
Manager to authorize a Purchase Order in the amount of $300,000 to Kennedy Jenks for 
Engineering Services During Construction. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the Agency’s Board of Directors does authorize its General 
Manager to authorize a Purchase Order in the amounts of $450,000 to MNS Engineers 
for Construction Management and Inspection Services. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Agency’s General Manager or its President and 
Secretary are thereupon authorized, upon receipt of appropriate payment and 
performance bonds, appropriate certificates of insurance and an executed Contract 
Agreement from GSE Construction Co., Inc., all of which must be approved by General 
Counsel, to execute the said Contract Agreement on behalf of the Agency. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the Agency’s General Manager or Chief Engineer are 
thereafter authorized to execute and forward to GSE Construction Co., Inc. an 
appropriate Notice to Proceed. 
      
 
 

18



V
a
ll
e
y
 C

e
n
te

r 
W

e
ll
 P

FA
S

G
ro

u
n
d
w

a
te

r 
T
re

a
tm

e
n
t

S
it

e
 C

o
n
st

ru
c
ti

o
n
 P

ro
je

c
tM

a
rc

h
 1

6
, 

2
0
2
1

B
o
a
rd

 M
e
e
ti

n
g

19



V
a
ll
e
y
 C

e
n
te

r 
W

e
ll
 P

F
A

S
 G

ro
u
n
d
w

a
te

r 
T
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

P
ro

je
c
t

L
o
c
a
ti

o
n
 M

a
p

2

20



V
a
ll
e
y
 C

e
n
te

r 
W

e
ll
 P

F
A

S
 G

ro
u
n
d
w

a
te

r 
T
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

P
ro

je
c
t

3
-D

 R
e
n
d
e
ri

n
g

W
e
ll

Io
n
 E

x
c
h
a
n
g

e
 V

e
s
s
e
ls

C
h
e
m

ic
a
l 
B

u
ild

in
g

P
re

-F
ilt

e
rs

3

21



•
St

a
ff

 a
d
ve

rt
is

e
d
 p

ro
je

ct
 o

n
 P

la
n
e
tB

id
s

fr
o
m

 N
o
ve

m
b
e
r 

2
3
, 

2
0
2
0
 t

o
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
, 

2
0
2
1

•
P
ro

je
ct

 w
a
s 

a
d
ve

rt
is

e
d
 i
n
 T

h
e
 S

ig
n
a
l 
o
n
 D

e
ce

m
b
e
r 

1
st
, 

5
th

a
n
d
 9

th

•
B
id

s 
w

e
re

 e
le

ct
ro

n
ic

a
ll
y 

o
p
e
n
e
d
 o

n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
, 

2
0
2
1

B
id

d
e
r

B
id

d
e
r 

O
ff

ic
e

L
o
c
a
ti

o
n

T
o
ta

l 
B
id

 P
ri

c
e

G
SE

 C
o
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 C

o
.,

 I
n
c.

L
iv

e
rm

o
re

, 
C
A

$
 2

,9
9
6
,8

0
0

B
o
w

e
 C

o
n
tr

a
ct

o
rs

, 
In

c.
L
a
n
ca

st
e
r,

 C
A

$
 3

,0
9
8
,0

0
0

H
P
S 

M
e
ch

a
n
ic

a
l,

 I
n
c.

B
a
k
e
rs

fi
e
ld

, 
C
A

$
 3

,3
7
2
,1

3
5

P
C
L 

C
o
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
, 

In
c.

L
o
n
g
 B

e
a
ch

, 
C
A

$
 3

,3
7
2
,1

5
0

P
a
ci

fi
c 

H
yd

ro
te

ch
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n

P
e
rr

is
, 

C
A

$
 3

,3
8
0
,5

2
3

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 W

a
te

r 
Se

rv
ic

e
s,

 I
n
c.

St
e
a
m

b
o
a
t 

Sp
ri

n
g
s,

 C
O

$
 3

,3
9
0
,4

3
2

Te
ic

h
e
rt

 E
n
e
rg

y 
&

 U
ti

li
ti

e
s 

G
ro

u
p
, 

In
c.

L
o
n
g
 B

e
a
ch

, 
C
A

$
 3

,6
4
8
,0

0
0

M
e
h
ta

 M
e
ch

a
n
ic

a
l 
C
o
m

p
a
n
y,

 I
n
c.

L
a
 P

a
lm

a
, 

C
A

$
 6

,5
8
2
,8

0
0

4

*E
n
gi

n
e
e
r’

s 
E
st

im
a
te

 $
3
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

V
a
ll
e
y
 C

e
n
te

r 
W

e
ll
 P

F
A

S
 G

ro
u
n
d
w

a
te

r 
T
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

P
ro

je
c
t

S
it

e
 C

o
n
st

ru
c
ti

o
n

22



E
n
gi

n
e
e
ri

n
g 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

D
u
ri

n
g 

C
o
n
st

ru
c
ti

o
n
:

P
re
-c
o
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
a
n
d
p
ro
gr
e
ss

m
e
e
ti
n
gs

$
2
6
,0
0
0

P
ro
je
ct

M
a
n
a
ge

m
e
n
t
(m

o
n
th
ly

p
ro
gr
e
ss

u
p
d
a
te
s)

$
4
3
,0
0
0

Su
b
m
it
ta
ls
,
Si
te

V
is
it
s,

R
F
I’
s,

e
tc
.

$
2
1
1
,0
0
0

P
ro
je
ct

C
lo
se
o
u
t
a
n
d
R
e
co

rd
D
ra
w
in
gs

$
2
0
,0
0
0

To
ta
l

$
3
0
0
,0
0
0

To
ta

l 
R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 T

im
e
 a

n
d
 M

a
te

ri
a
ls

 N
o
t 

to
 E

x
c
e
e
d
 B

u
d
ge

t:
 $

3
0
0
,0

0
0

V
a
ll
e
y
 C

e
n
te

r 
W

e
ll
 P

F
A

S
 G

ro
u
n
d
w

a
te

r 
T
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

P
ro

je
c
t

S
it

e
 C

o
n
st

ru
c
ti

o
n

K
e
n
n
e
d
y
 J

e
n
k
s 

P
ro

p
o
sa

l

5

23



C
o
n
st

ru
c
ti

o
n
 M

a
n
a
ge

m
e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s:

 

C
o
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
M
a
n
a
ge

m
e
n
t
a
n
d
In
sp
e
ct
io
n
Se

rv
ic
e
s

$
4
0
0
,0
0
0

M
a
te
ri
a
l
Te

st
in
g
(o
p
ti
o
n
a
l)
a
n
d
O
th
e
r
D
ir
e
ct

C
o
st
s

$
5
0
,0
0
0

Su
b
to
ta
l

$
4
5
0
,0
0
0

To
ta

l 
R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 T

im
e
 a

n
d
 M

a
te

ri
a
ls

 N
o
t 

to
 E

x
c
e
e
d
 B

u
d
ge

t:
 $

4
5
0
,0

0
0

6

V
a
ll
e
y
 C

e
n
te

r 
W

e
ll
 P

F
A

S
 G

ro
u
n
d
w

a
te

r 
T
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

P
ro

je
c
t

S
it

e
 C

o
n
st

ru
c
ti

o
n

M
N

S
 E

n
gi

n
e
e
rs

 P
ro

p
o
sa

l

24



•
C
o
n
st

ru
c
ti

o
n
 A

w
a
rd

 P
h
a
se

:


M

a
rc

h
 4

, 
2
0
2
1
: 

E
n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 &

 O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

C
o
m

m
it

te
e


M

a
rc

h
 1

6
, 

2
0
2
1
: 

B
o
a
rd

 M
e
e
ti

n
g

•
C
o
n
st

ru
c
ti

o
n
 P

h
a
se

:


A
p
ri

l 
2
0
2
1
: 

Is
su

e
 a

 N
o
ti

c
e
 t

o
 P

ro
c
e
e
d


A
p
ri

l 
2
0
2
1
 -

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
2
2
: 

C
o
n
st

ru
c
ti

o
n
 (

2
7
0
 c

a
le

n
d
a
r 

d
a
y
s)

•
R
e
si

n
 P

u
rc

h
a
se

 P
h
a
se

:


J
u
ly

 2
0
2
1
: 

E
n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 &

 O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

C
o
m

m
it

te
e


A
u
g
u
st

 2
0
2
1
: 

B
o
a
rd

 M
e
e
ti

n
g

V
a
ll
e
y
 C

e
n
te

r 
W

e
ll
 P

F
A

S
 G

ro
u
n
d
w

a
te

r 
T
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

P
ro

je
c
t

S
it

e
 C

o
n
st

ru
c
ti

o
n
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

S
c
h
e
d
u
le

 

7

25



V
a
ll
e
y
 C

e
n
te

r 
W

e
ll
 P

F
A

S
 G

ro
u
n
d
w

a
te

r 
T
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

P
ro

je
c
t

S
it

e
 C

o
n
st

ru
c
ti

o
n

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti

o
n

T
h
e
 E

n
gi

n
e
e
ri

n
g 

a
n
d
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

C
o
m

m
it

te
e
 r

e
co

m
m

e
n
d
s 

th
e
 B

o
a
rd

 o
f 

D
ir

e
ct

o
rs

:

1
.

A
d
o
p
t 

th
e
 r

e
so

lu
ti

o
n
 a

w
a
rd

in
g 

a
 c

o
n
tr

a
ct

 t
o
 G

SE
 C

o
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 C

o
.,

 I
n
c.

 f
o
r 

th
e
 V

a
ll
e
y 

C
e
n
te

r 
W

e
ll
 P

FA
S 

G
ro

u
n
d
w

a
te

r 
Tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 

P
ro

je
ct

 f
o
r 

$
2
,9

9
6
,8

0
0

2
.

A
u
th

o
ri

ze
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

to
 e

xe
cu

te
 a

 p
u
rc

h
a
se

 o
rd

e
r 

fo
r 

e
n
gi

n
e
e
ri

n
g 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

d
u
ri

n
g 

co
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 K

e
n
n
e
d
y 

Je
n
ks

 f
o
r 

a
n
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

n
o
t 

to
 e

xc
e
e
d
 

$
3
0
0
,0

0
0

3
.

A
u
th

o
ri

ze
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

to
 e

xe
cu

te
 a

 p
u
rc

h
a
se

 o
rd

e
r 

fo
r 

co
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 

m
a
n
a
ge

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
sp

e
ct

io
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

w
it

h
 M

N
S 

E
n
gi

n
e
e
rs

 f
o
r 

a
n
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

n
o
t 

to
 e

xc
e
e
d
 $

4
5
0
,0

0
0

8

26



9

Q
u
e
st
io
n
s

27



[This page intentionally left blank.] 

28



BOARD MEMORANDUM 

SUMMARY 

SCV Water currently consists of 7 separate Public Water System Operating Permits issued by 
Division of Drinking Water (DDW). There are several interconnections between the various 
systems. The original intent of these connections was to provide emergency or stand-by water 
supply to the neighboring utility. Since the formation of SCV Water, the goal has broadened to 
integrate the separate systems into one distribution system. 

The West Newhall Interconnection will be between the Newhall Water Division-Newhall system 
and the Santa Clarita Division system and the Valencia Water Division system and the SCWD 
system. The goal is to provide more robust and reliable service to this area. 

DISCUSSION 

The original approved contract amount of $261,000 included interior recoating and some 
structural repairs to the internal rafters. Simpson Sandblasting & Special Coatings, Inc., has 
subcontracted the structural repair work to Speiss Construction Co., Inc. Staff also contracted 
with Cannon Engineering to provide structural design and recommendations. Upon review of the 
initial dive inspection report and after field visits it was concluded that the rafter repairs would 
only require additional bracing support. 

However, after the tank was taken out of service and drained, it was subjected to a severe 
windstorm event. After the construction crews remobilized and entered the tank, it was observed 
that additional rafter damage had occurred. Based on review and documentation from both 
contractor and structural engineer, it was determined that the additional damage was caused by 
the high winds. The repeated cycles of wind loads lifting and dropping the roof plates on the 
joists has caused the joists to move further out of alignment. Therefore, it was concluded that 
the rafters will now need additional straightening and the additional exposed areas will also 
require recoating. 

Staff has reviewed the proposed additional work with the contractor and structural engineer and 
finds the proposal acceptable for the additional work that is needed. The change order estimate 
is $40,453.68, which equates to approximately 15.5% of the total contract price. This would 
increase the total project cost to just over $300,000.  

DATE: March 8, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Mike Alvord 
Director of Operations & Maintenance 

SUBJECT: Approve a Change Order to the Contract for Newhall Tank 2 Interior Recoat 
and Repair 

29

ajacobs
Item 5.3

ajacobs
Mike Alvord



 

On March 4, 2021, the Engineering and Operations Committee considered staff’s 
recommendation to approve a Change Order to the Contract for Newhall Tank 2 Interior Recoat 
and Repair. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Funding for the Newhall Tank 2 Interior Recoat & Repair project is provided through the CIP 
budget and is included in the FY2020-21 Budget in the amount of $500,000. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Engineering and Operations Committee recommend that the Board of Directors approve 
the General Manager to execute the change order in the amount of $40,500 to the original 
contract amount of $261,000 for the Newhall Tank 2 Interior Recoat & Repair to Simpson 
Sandblasting & Special Coatings, Inc. 
 
 
 

30

ajacobs
Matt Stone



RESOLUTION NO. ____ 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY  

CONCURRING IN THE NOMINATION OF JO MACKENZIE 
TO THE CSDA BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

WHEREAS, the California Special Districts Association (CSDA) is holding an election for its Board 
of Directors for the Southern Network, Seat A for the 2021-23 term; and  

WHEREAS, the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency is a voting member of CSDA and a voting 
member of the Southern Network; and 

WHEREAS, the incumbent, Jo MacKenzie, of the Vista Irrigation District is seeking re-election for 
this position; and 

WHEREAS, Jo MacKenzie has been involved with the CSDA Board since 2003 and has served 
in a wide variety of roles including Board President in 2011, Vice President in 2010, and Treasurer 
in 2008 and 2009; and   

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency believe that Jo 
MacKenzie is an effective leader on the CSDA Board. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Satna Clarita Valley 
Water Agency does concur in the nomination of Jo MacKenzie to represent the Southern Network, 
Seat A, on the CSDA Board of Directors; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District Secretary is hereby directed to transmit a copy of 
this resolution to the attention of the Board Secretary of the Vista Irrigation District at 1391 
Engineer Street, Vista, CA 92081, or email Lsoto@vidwater.org forthwith. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the following roll call vote of the Board of Directors for the Santa 
Clarita Valley Water Agency this 16th day of March 2021. 

AYES: 
NOES:  
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT:  

Gary Martin, President 

ATTEST: 

April Jacobs, Secretary 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 

31

ajacobs
Item 5.4



[This page intentionally left blank.] 

32



 

CONCURRING RESOLUTION REQUEST 

Re-ELECT JO MacKENZIE 

TO 

CSDA BOARD OF DIRECTORS, SEAT A 

SOUTHERN NETWORK  
 

Board Member Southern Network, 

I would appreciate your board of directors consider approving a Concurring Nomination Resolution on my 

behalf.  Nominations are now in progress for the CSDA Board of Directors, Seat A.  There are three directors 

in each Network with rotating three-year terms.  I am running for my seat on the CSDA Board so I can 

continue serving you.  I have attached a Concurring Nomination Resolution Template for your convenience.  

It has been a privilege and honor to represent the California Special Districts Southern Network.  I have 

served on the CSDA Board as President, Vice President and Treasurer, as well as on nearly all of the CSDA 

Committees. During my tenure on the board of directors, I have provided the leadership to grow the 

association.  CSDA’s influence and visibility in the Capitol has grown because legislators know the 

association represents the diverse needs of all special districts.  In this leadership role, I will continue to 

provide the direction, ideas, and participation necessary for CSDA to continue its upward progress.  I am 

presently the President of the CSDA Finance Corp---if your agency is in need of funding for a capital 

improvement project, the Finance Corp provides competitive financing.  I was appointed by the CSDA Board 

to serve on the Special District Leadership Foundation (SDLF) Board of Directors in 2013 where I continue 

to serve as its Treasurer since 2014. 

Serving on the CSDA Board of Directors requires a commitment of time along with a sincere interest in the 

issues confronting special districts statewide and nationally.    It is also imperative that CSDA Board 

Members are driven to assure that members receive timely information and assistance in order to be up-to-

date on new legislation affecting special districts, and the educational opportunities offered by CSDA.  I 

connect with the Southern Network members so that they know what CSDA, CSDA Finance Corp, and the 

Special District Leadership Foundation have to offer:  educational opportunities and representation at the 

Capitol; financing to meet district’s needs; and scholarship availability to attend CSDA events.    

I would truly be honored if your district would approve the concurring resolution.  Thank you for your 

consideration of my request. 

Jo MacKenzie, Director 

Vista Irrigation District  

CSDA Past President 

mackgroup@cox.net 

760-743-7969 

 

CSDA EDUCATION CATALOG LINK:   

https://www.csda.net/viewdocument/2021-professional-development-catal    All webinars are free to CSDA 

Members this year.  The Workshops and Conferences are at the reduced Membership fee.  If your district 

needs financial assistance in order to attend, check out the Scholarships available to ALL districts on a first 

come basis (funds are limited) at WWW. SDLF.ORG.     

33



[This page intentionally left blank.] 

34



BOARD MEMORANDUM 

SUMMARY 

To commence construction of the Vista Canyon (Phase 2B) Recycled Water Tank project, 
staff recommends approval of: 

1) A resolution awarding a construction contract to Pacific Tank and Construction Inc., in
the amount of $3,906,870 with a condition that the project complies with the adopted
supplemental Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting
Program, and to approve the General Manager’s change order authority be increased
to ten percent (10%) of the original contract amount, as provided for in SCV Water
Purchasing Policy.

2) A work authorization to Cannon Corporation for construction management, inspection
services, and material testing, in the amount of $496,015.

3) A work authorization to Kennedy Jenks for engineering construction support services,
in the amount of $126,000.

4) A work authorization to Geolabs Westlake Village for geotechnical observation and
testing services, in the amount of $106,000.

DISCUSSION 

The Phase 2B project will provide recycled water to the east side of SCV Water’s service area 
by using surplus recycled water that will be available from the new water reclamation plant 
(termed The Water Factory) that was recently constructed as part of the Vista Canyon 
development. The proposed Phase 2B recycled water system comprises a network of 
recycled water distribution pipelines that extend from the Water Factory to irrigation water 
users within the Vista Canyon and Fair Oaks Ranch communities; and recycled water tanks 

DATE: March 5, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Courtney Mael, P.E. 
Chief Engineer 

SUBJECT: Approve (1) a Resolution Awarding a Construction Contract to Pacific Tank 
and Construction Inc., with a Condition that Project Complies with the 
Adopted Supplemental Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Program, and to Approve the General Manager’s 
Change Order Authority be Increased to Ten Percent (10%) of the Original 
Contract Amount, (2) a Work Authorization to Cannon Corporation for 
Construction Management and Inspection Services, (3) a Work Authorization 
to Kennedy Jenks for Engineering Construction Support Services and (4) a 
Work Authorization to Geolabs Westlake Village for Geotechnical 
Observation and Testing Services for the Vista Canyon (Phase 2B) Recycled 
Water Tank Project 

35

ajacobs
Item 6.1

ajacobs
Courteny Mael



 

that are necessary for operational storage. The distribution pipelines are currently in 
construction under a separate contract and are not a part of this approval action. 
 
The Phase 2B recycled water tank project consists of constructing two 500,000-gallon 
recycled water welded-steel tanks on a re-graded pad site next to the Cherry Willow potable 
water tank site, including onsite piping, utilities, site improvements, and appurtenances. The 
project will also include a 15-foot-high berm to minimize visual impacts to the residents along 
Cherry Willow Drive below, and the extension of the recycled water distribution pipeline along 
the existing tank access road.  
 
SCV Water advertised the recycled water tank project for public construction bidding on January 
8, 2021 in accordance with SCV Water Purchasing Policy. Five (5) bids were received 
electronically on February 10, 2021 and are shown below. 
 

Bidder Total Bid Price 

Pacific Tank & Construction, Inc. $ 3,906,870.00 
Metro Builders & Engineering Group, Ltd. $ 4,298,338.00 
Bowe Contractors, Inc. $ 4,806,616.50 
Paso Robles Tank, Inc. $ 4,985,616.00 
Myers & Sons, Inc. $ 5,151,000.00 

 
Upon review of the bids for completeness and compliance with the bid and contract 
requirements, staff recommends award of the construction contract to Pacific Tank & 
Construction, Inc. as the lowest responsible bidder, for a total of $3,906,870.00. The engineer’s 
estimate for the project is $3,960,000. Pacific Tank & Construction, Inc. is licensed as a Class A 
General Engineering and C33 Contractor in California and is registered with the Department of 
Industrial Relations. 
 
A bid protest was received from the 2nd lowest bidder, Metro Builders & Engineering Group, Ltd., 
claiming that Pacific Tank and Construction, Inc., the lowest bidder, neglected to submit a 
notary acknowledgement with the Bid Bond and Non-Collusion Affidavit that are required to be 
executed by all bidding contractors. As recommended by legal counsel, SCV Water denied the 
bid protest based on the following: Staff confirmed that an executed bid bond and notary 
acknowledgement was in fact received by our office prior to the bid opening date, and a notary 
acknowledgement for the non-collusion affidavit is not required by Public Contract Code 7106.  
A copy of the bid protest rejection letter is attached. Furthermore, Metro Builders & Engineering 
Group’s own bid is not responsive and not eligible for award of the contract. 
 
SCV Water Issued a Request for Proposal to seven (7) on-call engineering consultants to 
provide construction management, inspection, and material testing services. Proposals were 
received from three (3) engineering firms. An internal consultant selection committee reviewed 
and scored the proposals based on project approach, qualifications, schedule, and team 
members. Staff recommends that Cannon Corporation, with the highest score, be awarded a 
work authorization to provide construction management, inspection, and material testing 
services in the amount of $496,015. 
 
Staff received a proposal from Kennedy Jenks, the engineer of record and design consultant, to 
provide engineering construction support services in the amount of $126,000. The scope of 
services will include submittal review, attending construction meetings, site visits, assistance in 
responding to requests for information and/or change orders, and preparing record drawings. 

36



 

Staff received a proposal from Geolabs Westlake Village, the geotechnical engineer of record, 
to provide geotechnical observation and testing services during construction of the tanks for up 
to $106,000. The scope of services will include daily observation during grading activities, 
testing and reporting of excavations, grading, and compaction of the tank pad and surrounding 
slopes.  
 
The Agency’s Purchasing Policy allows the General Manager to approve change orders up to 
four percent (4%) of the original contract amount, however, the Board may authorize a different 
change order authority on a project specific basis. Since this project must meet a December 31, 
2021 deadline to qualify for grant funding, there will be limited time for change order processing 
and approvals. Accordingly, staff recommends that the General Manager’s change order 
authority be increased to ten percent (10%) of the original contract amount for this Phase 2B 
tank project. Staff will brief the Engineering and Operations Committee and Board of all final 
approved change orders in accordance with SCV Water Purchasing Policy.  
 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) DETERMINATION 
 
The Castaic Lake Water Agency’s Board of Directors adopted the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (MND) and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) for the Phase 2B 
project, including the proposed pipelines, by Resolution 3211 on November 20, 2017. CLWA 
filed the Notice of Determination with the Los Angeles County Clerk’s Office and the State 
Clearinghouse on February 9, 2018.  
 
On February 4, 2021, The Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency’s Engineering and Operations 
Committee reviewed staff’s recommendation to adopt the project’s supplemental Mitigated 
Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program and recommended that 
a resolution to adopt the Supplemental MND and MMRP be placed on the March 2, 2021 
agenda for consideration by the SCV Water Board of Directors.  
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Funding for the Phase 2B project is included in the Agency’s FY2020/21 Capital Improvement 
Project Budget. The CIP budget includes $6,912,000 for the Phase 2B recycled water tanks and 
backbone portion of the recycled water pipeline. The total tank and backbone pipeline project 
cost is estimated to be $6,584,557, including a 10% contingency allotment for potential change 
orders. The project is expected to receive $2,710,300 in grant funds from the Department of 
Water Resources.  

On March 4, 2021, the Engineering and Operations Committee considered staff’s 
recommendation to approve (1) a resolution awarding a construction contract to Pacific Tank 
and Construction Inc., with a condition that project complies with the adopted supplemental 
Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, and to 
approve the General Manager’s change order authority be increased to ten percent (10%) of the 
original contract amount, (2) a work authorization to Cannon Corporation for construction 
management and inspection services, (3) a work authorization to Kennedy Jenks for 
engineering construction support services and (4) a work authorization to Geolabs Westlake 
Village for geotechnical observation and testing services. 

 

37



 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
The Engineering and Operations Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approve 
(1) the attached resolution awarding a construction contract to Pacific Tank and Construction 
Inc., in the amount of $3,906,870, with a condition that project complies with the adopted 
supplemental Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, 
and to approve the General Manager’s change order authority be increased to ten percent 
(10%) of the original contract amount, (2) a work authorization to Cannon Corporation for 
construction management, inspection services, and material testing, in the amount of $496,015, 
(3) a work authorization to Kennedy Jenks for engineering construction support services, in the 
amount of $126,000 and (4) a work authorization to Geolabs Westlake Village for geotechnical 
observation and testing services, in the amount of $106,000. 
 
Attachments 

38

ajacobs
Matt Stone



 

l  

Engineering Services Section 26521 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350-3049 

(661) 259-2737 | yourSCVwater.com 

 

 

 
February 18, 2021                  
 
 
Mr. Fouad Houalla 
President 
Metro Builders & Engineers Group, Ltd. 
2610 Avon Street  
Newport Beach, CA 92633 
 
 
Subject: Response to Bid Protest of February 15, 2021  

Phase 2B Recycled Water Tanks at Cherry Willow Drive 
 
 

Dear Mr. Houalla, 
 
SCV Water received your bid protest letter, dated February 15, 2021, and hereby deny 
your bid protest request for the following reasons:  
 

1. In accordance with the subject project contract documents, a bid bond with a notary 
acknowledgement was received in our office from Pacific Tank and Construction, 
Inc. and opened in our office at 2:00 pm on February 10, 2021. A Copy is enclosed 
for reference.  
 

2. Any failure to submit a notary acknowledgment with the non-collusion affidavit is an 
immaterial and inconsequential defect that the Agency may waive in its discretion. 
Under well-settled law, “the absence of only one signature in an otherwise complete 
bid should be waivable by the public entity.” (Menefee v. County of Fresno (1985) 
163 Cal.App.3d 1175, 1179.) The Menefee case contains a substantially similar 
issue to the one raised in your protest: it involved a non-collusion affidavit that was 
not signed. In the court’s words, the argument the bid was invalid “will not fly,” and 
“there is no reason why the requirement cannot be waived.” (See p. 1181.) Here, the 
only issue is lack of a notary signature on the affidavit, which is a requirement of the 
bid documents but is not otherwise required by law and can be waived.  The affidavit 
meets all of the requirements of Public Contract Code section 7106.  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0E0D171E-4A07-4DFB-8962-3ADF784BBDC0

39



Phase 2B Recycled Water Tanks at Cherry Willow Drive 
Response to Bid Protest 
February 18, 2021 
Page 2 

 
 
 
Additionally, Metro Builders has no standing to protest the low bid because Metro’s own 
bid is not responsive and not eligible for award of the contract. The Instruction to Bidders 
states that “Bidders should be aware that the AGENCY has established the following 
responsiveness criteria and shall be required to complete the related bid form 
demonstrating that they can meet the following criteria:  The Contractor shall have 
completed at least two (2) similar projects between January 1, 2014 and December 1, 
2020.” Metro Builder’s bid form does not show that Metro has completed two similar 
projects constructing large welded steel reservoir/tank projects.  
 
Furthermore, the bid specifications issued as Addendum No. 5, require that the coating 
contractor shall have a C-33 license, and Metro’s bid does not indicate that Metro or any of 
its listed subcontractors has this license. Therefore, Metro builders & Engineering Group, 
Ltd., failed to submit a responsive bid and would not have grounds to pursue its protest. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 
 
Courtney Mael, P.E. 
Chief Engineer 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0E0D171E-4A07-4DFB-8962-3ADF784BBDC0

2/18/2021

40



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0E0D171E-4A07-4DFB-8962-3ADF784BBDC0

41



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0E0D171E-4A07-4DFB-8962-3ADF784BBDC0

42



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0E0D171E-4A07-4DFB-8962-3ADF784BBDC0

43



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0E0D171E-4A07-4DFB-8962-3ADF784BBDC0

44



 

RESOLUTION NO. SCV-XXX 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 

AWARDING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO 

PACIFIC TANK AND CONSTRUCTION, INC. FOR THE 

PHASE 2B RECYCLED WATER TANKS AT CHERRY WILLOW DRIVE PROJECT 
 
 
WHEREAS, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (Agency) determined that recycled water 
is an important component of future water supplies; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Phase 2B Recycled Water Tanks at Cherry Willow Drive project is a 
component of the Recycled Water Master Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Phase 2B Recycled Water Tanks at Cherry Willow Drive project is a 
collaborative project between the Regional Division (Regional) and the Santa Clarita 
Water Division (SCWD); and 
 

WHEREAS, on November 20, 2017, the Castaic Lake Water Agency’s Board of 
Directors adopted the Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) and Mitigation Monitoring 
and Reporting Program (MMRP) for the Vista Canyon Recycled Water (Phase 2B) 
project by Resolution 3211; and  
 
WHEREAS, on March 2, 2021, the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency’s Board of 
Directors adopted the Supplemental Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) and 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) for the Vista Canyon Recycled 
Water (Phase 2B) project by Resolution; and  
 
WHEREAS, all bid proposals submitted to the Agency pursuant to the Agency’s Contract 
Documents (Project No. S16-702) for the construction of the Phase 2B Recycled Water 
Tanks at Cherry Willow Drive project, as amended by Addenda, were received 
electronically and reviewed by Agency staff on Wednesday, February 10, 2021 at 2:00 
p.m., in full accordance with the law and the Agency’s customary procedures; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors finds, after considering the opinion of staff, that the 
total bid of Pacific Tank and Construction, Inc., in the amount of $3,906,870 is the lowest 
responsible bid of five bids submitted, and that said bid substantially meets the 
requirements of said construction contract documents as amended by Addenda; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the Agency’s best interest that the Board of Directors, on behalf of 
the Agency, authorize its General Manager to accept the $3,906,870 bid; and 
 

WHEREAS, SCV Water’s current Purchasing Policy allows the General Manager to 
approve change orders up to four percent (4%) of the original contract amount; and it is 
in the Agency’s best interest to hereby authorize the General Manager’s change order 
authority to be increased to ten percent (10%) of the original contract amount for the 
Phase 2B Recycled Water Tanks at Cherry Willow Drive project, as provided for in SCV 
Water’s Purchasing Policy on a project-specific basis. 
 

45



 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Agency’s Board of Directors does 
authorize its General Manager to waive all defects and accept said low bid and does 
therefore authorize the Agency’s General Manager or its Chief Engineer to issue a 
Notice of Award to Pacific Tank and Construction, Inc., hereby found to be the “lowest 
responsible bidder” for the Phase 2B Recycled Water Tanks at Cherry Willow Drive for 
the total sum of $3,906,870. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the Agency’s General Manager or its President and 
Secretary are thereupon authorized, upon receipt of appropriate payment and 
performance bonds, appropriate certificates of insurance and an executed Contract 
Agreement from Pacific Tank and Construction, Inc., all of which must be approved by 
General Counsel, to execute the said Contract Agreement on behalf of the Agency. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the Agency’s General Manager or Chief Engineer are 
thereafter authorized to execute and forward to Pacific Tank and Construction, Inc. an 
appropriate Notice to Proceed. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the Agency’s Board of Directors does hereby approve the 
General Manager’s change order authority be increased to ten percent (10%) of the 
original contract amount for the Phase 2B Recycled Water Tanks at Cherry Willow Drive 
project as provided for in the SCV Water Purchasing Policy on a project-specific basis. 
 
 
 

46



V
is

ta
 C

a
n
y
o
n
 R

e
c
y
c
le

d
 W

a
te

r 
 

(P
h
a
se

 2
B
) 

Ta
n
k
 

M
a
rc

h
 1

6
, 

2
0
2
1

B
o
a
rd

 M
e
e
ti

n
g

47



O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 V

is
ta

 C
a
n
y
o
n
 (

P
h
a
se

 2
B
)

R
e
c
y
c
le

d
 W

a
te

r 
P
ro

je
c
t

•
V
is

ta
 C

a
n
y
o
n
 W

a
te

r 
F
a
c
to

ry
 

w
il
l 
su

p
p
ly

 r
e
c
y
c
le

d
 w

a
te

r 
to

 
ir

ri
g
a
ti

o
n
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e
 F

a
ir

 
O

a
k
s 

a
n
d
 V

is
ta

 C
a
n
y
o
n
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it

ie
s

•
R
e
c
y
c
le

d
 W

a
te

r 
P
ip

e
li
n
e
s 

a
re

 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl

y
 i
n
 c

o
n
st

ru
c
ti

o
n
 u

n
d
e
r 

se
p
a
ra

te
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t

•
Ta

n
k
s 

p
ro

v
id

e
 r

e
c
y
c
le

d
 w

a
te

r 
st

o
r a

g
e
 t

o
 b

e
 u

se
d
 f

o
r 

p
e
a
k
 

d
e
m

a
n
d
s 

a
n
d
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 
sy

st
e
m

 p
re

ss
u
re

 t
o
 i
rr

ig
a
ti

o
n
 

c
u
st

o
m

e
rs

.

2

48



P
ro

p
o
se

d
 P

h
2
B
 R

e
c
y
c
le

d
 W

a
te

r 
T
a
n
k
s

•
Tw

o
 0

.5
 M

G
 R

e
c
y
c
le

d
 

W
a
te

r 
ta

n
k
s

•
1
5
’ 

e
a
rt

h
 b

e
rm

 a
lo

n
g
 

n
o
r t

h
 s

id
e

•
R
e
c
y
c
le

d
 w

a
te

r 
p
ip

e
li
n
e
 e

x
te

n
si

o
n
 

a
lo

n
g
 a

c
c
e
ss

 r
o
a
d

3

49



R
e
c
y
c
le

d
 W

a
te

r 
(P

h
a
se

 2
B
) 

T
a
n
k
 P

ro
je

c
t

B
id

 O
p
e
n
in

g

*E
n
gi

n
e
e
r’

s 
E
st

im
a
te

: 
$
3
,9

6
0
,0

0
0

B
id

d
e
r

To
ta

l 
B
id

 P
ri

c
e

P
a
ci

fi
c 

Ta
n
k
 &

 C
o
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
, 

In
c.

$
3
,9

0
6
,8

7
0

M
e
tr

o
 B

u
il
d
e
rs

 &
 E

n
gi

n
e
e
ri

n
g 

G
ro

u
p
, 

L
td

$
4
,2

9
8
,3

3
8

B
o
w

e
 C

o
n
tr

a
ct

o
rs

, 
In

c.
$
4
,8

0
6
,6

1
6

P
a
so

 R
o
b
le

s 
Ta

n
k
, 

In
c

$
4
,9

8
5
,6

1
6

M
ye

rs
 &

 S
o
n
s,

 I
n
c.

$
5
,1

5
1
,0

0
0

4

•
St

a
ff

 a
d
ve

rt
is

e
d
 p

ro
je

ct
 o

n
 P

la
n
e
tB

id
s

fr
o
m

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 8
, 

2
0
2
1
 t

o
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 
1
0
, 

2
0
2
1

•
B
id

s 
w

e
re

 e
le

ct
ro

n
ic

a
ll
y 

o
p
e
n
e
d
 o

n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 1
0
, 

2
0
2
1

50



R
e
cy

cl
e
d
 W

a
te

r 
(P

h
a
se

 2
B
) 

Ta
n
k
 P

ro
je

ct
C

o
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 M

a
n
a
ge

m
e
n
t 

&
 E

n
gi

n
e
e
ri

n
g 

Se
rv

ic
e
s 

P
ro

p
o
sa

ls

N
o
t 

to
 E

x
ce

e
d
 A

m
o
u
n
t

•
C

o
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 M

a
n
a
ge

m
e
n
t,

 I
n
sp

e
ct

io
n
 a

n
d
 M

a
te

ri
a
l 
Te

st
in

g:
 

$
4
9
6
,0

1
5

C
a
n
n
o
n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 

•
G

e
o
te

ch
n
ic

a
l 
O

b
se

rv
a
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 T

e
st

in
g:

$
1
0
6
,0

0
0

G
e
o
la

b
s

W
e
st

la
k
e
 V

il
la

g
e
 (

G
E
 o

f 
R
e
co

rd
)

E
n
gi

n
e
e
ri

n
g 

C
o
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s:

$
1
2
6
,0

0
0

K
e
n
n
e
d
y
 J

e
n
k
s 

(E
n
g
in

e
e
r 

o
f 

R
e
co

rd
)

5

51



R
e
c
y
c
le

d
 W

a
te

r 
(P

h
a
se

 2
B
) 

T
a
n
k
 P

ro
je

c
t

S
c
h
e
d
u
le

•
Su

p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

l 
M

N
D

 T
im

e
li
n
e

•
B
o
a
rd

 o
f 

D
ir

e
ct

o
rs

 C
o
n
si

d
e
rs

 A
d
o
p
ti

o
n
 -

M
a
rc

h
 2

, 
2
0
2
1

•
P
ro

p
 8

4
 G

ra
n
t 

T
im

e
li
n
e

•
Ta

n
k 

C
o
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 m

u
st

 b
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
b
y 

D
e
ce

m
b
e
r 

3
1
, 

2
0
2
1

to
 r

e
ce

iv
e
 t

h
e
 f

u
ll
 g

ra
n
t 

re
im

b
u
rs

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

$
2
,7

0
6
,6

0
0

•
C
o
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 A

w
a
rd

 T
im

e
li
n
e
 

•
E
n
gi

n
e
e
ri

n
g 

&
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

C
o
m

m
it

te
e
 A

p
p
ro

va
l 
-

M
a
rc

h
 4

, 
2
0
2
1

•
B
o
a
rd

 o
f 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r’

s 
A
p
p
ro

va
l 
-

M
a
rc

h
 1

6
, 

2
0
2
1
  

•
Is

su
e
 a

 N
o
ti

ce
 t

o
 P

ro
ce

e
d
 -

A
p
ri

l 
1
2
, 

2
0
2
1
 

•
Su

b
st

a
n
ti

a
l 
C
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 -

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r 

1
9
, 

2
0
2
1

6

52



R
e
cy

cl
e
d
 W

a
te

r 
(P

h
a
se

 2
B
) 

Ta
n
k
 P

ro
je

ct
B
u
d
ge

t

C
a
te

go
ry

E
st

im
a
te

d
 C

o
st

s

F
in

a
l 
E
n
gi

n
e
e
ri

n
g 

Se
rv

ic
e
s

$
5
3
5
,0

0
0

R
W

 B
a
ck

b
o
n
e
 P

ip
e
li
n
e
 C

o
n
st

ru
ct

io
n

$
1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

R
W

 T
a
n
k
 C

o
n
st

ru
ct

io
n

$
3
,9

0
6
,8

7
0

1
0
%

 C
h
a
n
ge

 O
rd

e
r 

C
o
n
ti

n
ge

n
cy

$
3
9
0
,6

8
7

C
o
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 M

a
n
a
ge

m
e
n
t

$
7
5
2
,0

0
0

T
O

T
A

L 
E
ST

IM
A
T

E
D

 C
O

ST
$
6
,5

8
4
,5

5
7

•
Ta

n
k
 a

n
d
 B

a
ck

b
o
n
e
 P

ip
e
li
n
e
 C

IP
 B

u
d
g
e
t:

 $
6
,9

1
2
,0

0
0

•
P
ro

p
 8

4
 G

ra
n
t 

F
u
n
d
s 

~
 $

2
.7

 m
il
li
o
n

7

53



R
e
c
y
c
le

d
 W

a
te

r 
(P

h
a
se

 2
B
) 

T
a
n
k
 P

ro
je

c
t 

P
ro

je
c
t 

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti

o
n

8

1
.

A
 r

e
so

lu
ti

o
n
 a

w
a
rd

in
g 

a
 c

o
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
ct

 t
o
 P

a
ci

fi
c 

Ta
n
k
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
, 

In
c.

, 

in
 t

h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

$
3
,9

0
6
,8

7
0
, 

w
it

h
 a

 c
o
n
d
it

io
n
 t

h
a
t 

p
ro

je
ct

 c
o
m

p
li
e
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e
 

a
d
o
p
te

d
 s

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

l 
M

it
ig

a
te

d
 N

e
ga

ti
ve

 D
e
cl

a
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 M

it
ig

a
ti

o
n
 M

o
n
it

o
ri

n
g 

a
n
d
 

R
e
p
o
rt

in
g 

P
ro

gr
a
m

, 
a
n
d
 t

o
 a

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
M

a
n
a
ge

r’
s 

ch
a
n
ge

 o
rd

e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri

ty
 b

e
 

in
cr

e
a
se

d
 t

o
 t

e
n
 p

e
rc

e
n
t 

(1
0
%
) 

o
f 

th
e
 o

ri
gi

n
a
l 
co

n
tr

a
ct

 a
m

o
u
n
t 

fo
r 

th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

, 
a
s 

p
ro

vi
d
e
d
 f

o
r 

in
 S

C
V
 W

a
te

r 
P
u
rc

h
a
si

n
g 

P
o
li
cy

.

2
.

A
 w

o
rk

 a
u
th

o
ri

za
ti

o
n
 t

o
 C

a
n
n
o
n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

co
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 m

a
n
a
ge

m
e
n
t,

 

in
sp

e
ct

io
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s,

 a
n
d
 m

a
te

ri
a
l 
te

st
in

g,
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

$
4
9
6
,0

1
5
.

3
.

A
 w

o
rk

 a
u
th

o
ri

za
ti

o
n
 t

o
 K

e
n
n
e
d
y 

Je
n
k
s 

fo
r 

e
n
gi

n
e
e
ri

n
g 

co
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

se
rv

ic
e
s,

 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

$
1
2
6
,0

0
0
.

4
.

A
 w

o
rk

 a
u
th

o
ri

za
ti

o
n
 t

o
 G

e
o
la

b
s

W
e
st

la
k
e
 V

il
la

ge
 f

o
r 

ge
o
te

ch
n
ic

a
l 
o
b
se

rv
a
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 

te
st

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e
s,

 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

$
1
0
6
,0

0
0
.

T
h
e
 E

n
gi

n
e
e
ri

n
g 

a
n
d
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

C
o
m

m
it

te
e
 r

e
co

m
m

e
n
d
s 

th
e
 B

o
a
rd

 o
f 

D
ir

e
ct

o
rs

 
a
p
p
ro

ve
:

54



Q
u
e
st
io
n
s?

9

55



[This page intentionally left blank.] 

56



BOARD MEMORANDUM 

The Engineering and Operations Committee met at 5:30 PM on Thursday, March 4, 2021 via 
teleconference. In attendance were Chairman William Cooper, Directors Jeff Ford, Gary Martin, 
Piotr Orzechowski and Lynne Plambeck. Staff members present were General Manager Matt 
Stone; Assistant General Manager Steve Cole; Chief Engineer Courtney Mael; Chief Operating 
Officer Keith Abercrombie; Director of Operations and Maintenance Mike Alvord; Executive 
Assistant Leticia Quintero; Executive Assistant Elizabeth Gallo; Principal Engineer Jason Yim; 
Principal Engineer Brent Payne; Civil Engineer Orlando Moreno; Senior Engineer Jim 
Leserman; Senior Engineer Shadi Bader; Engineering Technician II Jim Moreno and Water 
Resources Planner Rick Vasilopulos. Three members of the public were present on the call. A 
copy of the agenda is attached. 

Item 1:  Public Comments – There was public comment. 

Item 2:  Recommend Approval of (1) a Resolution for Construction Contract with GSE 
Construction Company, Inc., (2) a Purchase Order to Kennedy Jenks for Engineering 
Services During Construction and (3) a Purchase Order to MNS Engineers for 
Construction Management and Inspection Services for the Valley Center Well PFAS 
Groundwater Treatment Improvements Project – Recommended actions for this item are 
included in a separate report being submitted at the March 16, 2021 regular Board meeting. 

Item 3:  Recommend Approval of (1) a Resolution Awarding a Construction Contract to 
Pacific Tank and Construction Inc., with a Condition that Project Complies with the 
Adopted Supplemental Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program, and to Approve the General Manager’s Change Order Authority be 
Increased to Ten Percent (10%) of the Original Contract Amount, (2) a Work Authorization 
to Cannon Corporation for Construction Management and Inspection Services, (3) a 
Work Authorization to Kennedy Jenks for Engineering Construction Support Services 
and (4) a Work Authorization to Geolabs Westlake Village for Geotechnical Observation 
and Testing Services – Recommended actions for this item are included in a separate report 
being submitted at the March 16, 2021 regular Board meeting. 

Item 4:  Recommend Approval of a Change Order to the Contract for Newhall Tank 2 
Interior Recoat and Repair – Recommended actions for this item are included in a separate 
report being submitted at the March 16, 2021 regular Board meeting. 

Item 5: Monthly Operations and Production Report – Staff and the Committee reviewed the 
Operations and Production Report. 

Item 6: Capital Improvement Projects Construction Status Report – Staff and the 
Committee reviewed the Capital Improvement Projects Construction Status Report. 

DATE: March 5, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Courtney Mael, P.E., Chief Engineer 
Keith Abercrombie, Chief Operating Officer 

SUBJECT: March 4, 2021 Engineering and Operations Committee Meeting Report 

57

ajacobs
Courteny Mael

ajacobs
Item 9.1

ajacobs
Keith Abercrombie



 

Item 7: Committee Planning Calendar – Staff and the Committee reviewed the FY 2020/21 
Committee Planning Calendar. 
 
Item 8:  General Report on Treatment, Distribution, Operations and Maintenance Services 
Section Activities – Keith Abercrombie shared with the Committee updates on the Agency’s 
SC2 turnout project, chlorine scrubber installation, PVC replacement project and the upcoming 
availability of data on the now operational N Wells. Keith also gave the Committee an overview 
on the daily duties of SCV Water’s Safety and Operations Division. 
 
Item 9: General Report on Engineering Services Section Activities – Courtney Mael 
updated the Committee on the rapidly growing request of engineering projects within the Santa 
Clarita Valley and the ongoing efforts of numerous staff to collaboratively improve both internal 
and external processes within the Engineering Services Section for a more streamlined 
experience.  
 
Item 10: Adjournment – The meeting adjourned at 7:18 PM. 
 
 
CM/KA 
Attachment 

58

ajacobs
Matt Stone



   
 

 

27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD •  SANTA CLARITA,  CALIFORNIA 91350-2173 •  661  297•1600 •  FAX 661 297•1611 
webs i t e  addres s :  www.y ourscv wate r . com  

 
 
  
 
 
 
Date: February 24, 2021 
 
To: Engineering and Operations Committee  
 William Cooper, Chair 
 Jeff Ford 
 Gary Martin 
 Piotr Orzechowski 
 Lynne Plambeck 
  
From: Courtney Mael, Chief Engineer 

Keith Abercrombie, Chief Operating Officer 
 
The Engineering and Operations Committee is scheduled to meet via teleconference on 
Thursday, March 4, 2021 at 5:30 PM, dial in information is listed below.  
 

TELECONFERENCE ONLY 
NO PHYSICAL LOCATION FOR MEETING 

 
TELECONFERENCING NOTICE 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Executive Order N-29-20 issued by  

Governor Gavin Newsom on March 17, 2020, any Director  
may call into an Agency Committee meeting using the Agency’s   
Call-In Number 1-833-568-8864, Access Code 161 033 2123 

or Zoom Webinar by clicking on the link https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1610332123 
without otherwise complying with the Brown Act’s teleconferencing requirements.  

 
Pursuant to the above Executive Order, the public may not attend the meeting in person.  Any 
member of the public may listen to the meeting or make comments to the Committee using the 
call-in number or Zoom Webinar link above. Please see the notice below if you have a disability 

and require an accommodation in order to participate in the meeting.  
 
We request that the public submit any comments in writing if practicable, which can be sent to 
egallo@scvwa.org or mailed to Elizabeth Gallo, Executive Assistant, Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency, 26521 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. All written comments received 

before 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to the Committee members and posted 
on the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior to the meeting. Anything received after 

4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be posted on the SCV Water website the following day.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

59

egallo
CM initials

egallo
Keith Abercrombie initials



February 24, 2021 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

ITEM    PAGE 
 
1. 
 
 
 
 

Public Comments – Members of the public may comment as to items 
not on the Agenda at this time. Members of the public wishing to 
comment on items covered in this Agenda may do so now or at the 
time each item is considered. (Comments may, at the discretion of the 
Committee Chair, be limited to three minutes for each speaker.) 

 
 
 
 

 

2.   * Recommend Approval of (1) a Resolution for Construction Contract 
with GSE Construction Company, Inc., (2) a Purchase Order to 
Kennedy Jenks for Engineering Services During Construction and (3) 
a Purchase Order to MNS Engineers for Construction Management 
and Inspection Services for the Valley Center Well PFAS 
Groundwater Treatment Improvements Project 
 

1 
 

3.   * Recommend Approval of (1) a Resolution Awarding a Construction 
Contract to Pacific Tank and Construction Inc., with a Condition that 
Project Complies with the Adopted Supplemental Mitigated Negative 
Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, and to 
Approve the General Manager’s Change Order Authority be Increased 
to Ten Percent (10%) of the Original Contract Amount, (2) a Work 
Authorization to Cannon Corporation for Construction Management and 
Inspection Services, (3) a Work Authorization to Kennedy Jenks for 
Engineering Construction Support Services and (4) a Work 
Authorization to Geolabs Westlake Village for Geotechnical 
Observation and Testing Services 
 

17 

4.   * Recommend Approval of a Change Order to the Contract for Newhall  
Tank 2 Interior Recoat and Repair  
 

 

39 
 

5.   * Monthly Operations and Production Report 41 
 

6.   * Capital Improvement Projects Construction Status Report 147 

7.   * Committee Planning Calendar 149 
 

8.    General Report on Treatment, Distribution, Operations and 
Maintenance Services Section Activities 

 

9. General Report on Engineering Services Section Activities  

10. Adjournment   

   

 * Indicates attachments 
 To be distributed 

 
 

60



February 24, 2021 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 

NOTICES: 
 
Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed for 
that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning Elizabeth Gallo, 
Executive Assistant, at (661) 259-2737, or in writing to Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency at 
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. Requests must specify the nature of the 
disability and the type of accommodation requested. A telephone number or other contact 
information should be included so that Agency staff may discuss appropriate arrangements. 
Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation should make the request with adequate 
time before the meeting for the Agency to provide the requested accommodation. 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open 
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) 
hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency, located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350, during 
regular business hours. When practical, these public records will also be made available on the 
Agency’s Internet Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com. 
 
Posted on February 25, 2021. 

61

egallo
Matt Stone initials



[This page intentionally left blank.] 

62



Director AB 1234 Report 
March 16, 2021 

Director name: Gary Martin 
Meeting attended:  DCA Program Review Workshop 
Date of meeting: March 3, 2021 
Location: Virtual  
SCV Water Board meeting to be presented at: March 16, 2021 

On March 3, 2021, I attended a Delta Conveyance Design and Construction Authority (DCA) program review 
workshop. The presentation was made by senior DCA staff and the major agenda items were as follows: 

 Project overview
 Intakes
 Tunnels and shafts
 Southern complex / central and eastern corridors
 Bethany reservoir alternative
 Logistics and traffic
 Reusable tunnel material (RTM)
 Flood risk reduction
 Construction schedule
 Q&A

Points of interest / information presented: 
 The 3 alignments under consideration (central, eastern, Bethany)
 Key conveyance components (intakes, tunnels & shafts, pumping plants, etc)
 Intake sites relative to capacity opyions
 Typical intake layout, intake types, intake critical issues
 Key components of a tunnel drive – launch shaft, maintenance shaft, retrieval shaft
 Description and technology of tunnel boring machine
 Tunneling critical issues – reusable tunnel material, drive distance, site access, poyential “gassy”

conditions, contracting strategies
 Southern complex layout and critical issues
 Key differences east and central alignments
 Bethany reservoir, complex, pumping plant and critical issues discussion
 Traffic studies and support logistics plans
 Reusable tunnel material (RTM) overview and basics
 Risk reduction discussion and strategies
 Construction schedule
 Q&A

63

ajacobs
New Stamp



[This page intentionally left blank.] 

64



From: Jerry Gladbach

To: April Jacobs

Subject: AB 1234 Report

Date: Friday, March 5, 2021 1:26:37 PM

CAUTION - EXTERNAL SENDER


________________________________



DIRECTOR AB 1234 REPORT

 Director Name:  Jerry Gladbach

 Meeting Attended:  NWRA’s Federal Affairs Committee

 Date of Meeting:  March 5, 2021

Date of Meeting to be presented at: March 16, 2021

Points of Interest:

The nominations for the second level of appointees will be occurring soon, including the Commissioner of Bureau

of Reclamation (B0R) and the head of the Corps of Engineers.

The nomination of Becerra as Secretary of HHS passed out of Committee with a tie vote, not good.

Brenda Birman, former Commissioner of BoR, will be working in Colorado on Colorado River issues

Shelby Hagenour, former Assistant Commissioner of BoR is now working with the. Farm Bureau which is very

good for western water.

The western states are well represented on the committees of both the Senate and House that are responsible for

water issues.

Earmarks may be coming back, but the total dollar amount that can be earmarked is only 1% of the appropriations

bill and each member can nominate 10 projects, which means very little for any one project.

Senator Bennett addressed Colorado’s Federal Affairs earlier today and reported that there are rumors that additional

 earmarks for water and transportation infrastructure may be forthcoming.  He reported that a letter is being drafted

 for all western Democratic Senators to sign asking the  Administration to support money for western water projects. 

He also reported that there is $300B in the latest COVIG relief bill for water, sewer and broadband infrastructure

and $500M to pay for water bills that are in arrears from low income customers.

 Special Districts can apply to cities and counties to get relief for COVIG financial impacts.  Although there are

efforts to get special districts paid directly like cities and counties, a large problem is that very few states have

special districts, and personnel from the east have never heard of special districts.

There are efforts to get money for forest health to be included in the infrastructure bill, and Senator Bennett is

pursuing efforts to have a certain amount included annually.

The Corps is continuing to issue nationwide permits.

President Biden has revoked over 170 regulations many of which were worked on prior to the President Trump

Administration began.

Gary Gold, formerly a key congressional staffer is now with the Salt River Project and is a great asset to the water

industry.

It was a very informative meeting.

65

ajacobs
Item 11.2



[This page intentionally left blank.] 

66



Mar 05 21 , 07 :43p Gladbach 
6612972200 

:::. :.,2ci: NWRA Alert: March 5th Federal Affairs Call 12:30 Eastern 

D -~: Mar 3, 2021 at 2:10:39 PM 

·: ~: ejglad@aol.com 

National 'vVater Resources Association 

March 3, 2021 

To: NWRA Federal Affairs Committee 

From: NWRA Fed Affairs Team 

Re: March 5th Federal Affairs Call 

12:30 Eastern, 11 :30 Central, 10:30 Mountain, 9 :30 Pacific 

Federal Affairs Committee members , 

We look forward to connecting with you on Friday during our March Federal Affairs 
Committee ca ll. We continue to see a good deal of activity both in Congress and at the 

Administration level. Please find information to access the call as well as an agenda 

below. 

Join online: 

NWRA March 2021 Federal Affairs Committee Call 

Friday, March 5, 2021 

12:30 Eastern, 11 :30 Central , 10:30 Mountain, 9:30 Pacific 

httP-s://us02web.zoom.us/j/82108151952? 

gwd=WU9JcVhDTVZOUkEvSm4zcEdFK0dRUT09 

Join by phone : 

Call in number: 301-715-8592 

Meeting ID: 821 0815 1952 
Passcode:455135 

I. Welcome 

II. Administration Updates 

a. Interior 
b. Army Corps 

c_ EPA 

Ill. Congress 

p.2 

67



Mar 05 21 , 07:43p Gladbach 
6612972200 

a. infrastructure 

(i) Coalition Efforts 

b . Special District Status 
c. Water Rights 

d. Water Quality Protection and Job Creation Act of 2021 

e. Committees 

IV. Task Force Updates 

a. Water Supply 

b. Water Quality 

c. Forest Health 

d. Environment 

e. Litigation Review 

f. Water Power 

g. Army Corps 

h. Groundwater 

V. NWRA Events 

a. Canal Safety Panel 

b. Federal Water Issues Conference 

VI. Other Business 

Please le1 us know if we can provide any additional information prior to the call. 

NWRA I (202) 698-0693 I nwra@nwra.org I nwra.org 

STAY CONNECTED 

i\JWR.I\ I 4 E Street SE, Washington, DC 20003 

Unsubscribe ejglad@aol.com 

UQdate Profile I Customer Contact Data Notice 

Sent by nwra@nwra.org 

p.3 

68


	Information Sheet 
	Agenda
	Item 5.1
	Item 5.2
	Item 5.3
	Item 5.4
	Item 6.1
	Item 9.1
	Iten 11.1
	Item 11.2

